History of 5t. John's Fresbyterisn Church
Rodney 1877 - 1975

Lt1lrmoet one hundred yeers ego in the emell villege of
Rodney & Fresbyterien Church wes built on Womroe Sireet on
lend purcheeed from ¥r. Williem Stinson. The firet church
wes € white freme building with € tell spire. For £lmost
e century thie church hes been &n importent cenitre in this
comrunity for the worship of God.

Prior to 1377 those of the Presbyterien fsith worshipped
in Enox Church, New Glesgow. They mede the long, wesrisome
trek over the send covered trzil which served &s & rosd. In
the epring end eutumn this roed teceme & see of deep mud &nd
during the winter huge snowbenks often blocked the wey. The
method of trevelling wee slow end weerisome. Theee worship-
pers ceme by horse drewn wegons or ceris in the summer and
by sleigh in the winter. Feny of them welked the five miles
4o church services which often lested =11 dey.

Reverend George Frences, who wes minicster £t Few Gles-
gow, beceme the first minister of the new church in Rodney.
The +two churches, being linked, beceme known 2= the Hew
Glesgow-Rodney cherge, &n errengement which continued until
the end of 195% when Eintyre joined the cherge.

In 1888 Hev. Nr. Frencee wes euthoriged to secure mo-
ney to build & mense in Rodney on lsnd purchsed from Fr.
Semuel Fetterson. This lerge, white brick house (now known
ge 227 Monroe St.) served es the minister's residence uniil
1965 when it wee sold, £ modern mense £t 235 Fonroe Sireel
repleced the former oOne.

During the yeers meny chenges end improvements took
plece. In 1502 coel oil lemps geve wey to ges lights which
were instelled in the chureh snd the mense, In 1516 these
were repleced by electric lighte. In 1903 £ hymn boerd wes
pleced =t the front of the church. Ey 1911 the need for &
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lerger church wes reelized nd the building wees remodelled.
It wee reised on 10 £ cemeni foundetion, thus meking &

lerge, eiry Sundey School room. The guditorium wes enlarged,
steined gless windows were instelled, =nd red brick replzced
the white wood siding. A pump orgen wss used for msny yeers,
beirg repleced by =n electric orgen in 1945. The present
Hemrond eleetric orgen wes purchesed in 1970. 1

The interior of the church todey is guite ettrsctive
with ok pews which scet zbout three hundred people. 4t
ithe front is the choir loft sepereted from the chencel by &
bress reiling with red velvet drepery. Red cerpet covers the
floor of the choir loft, chencel, &nd eisles of the church.
The messive derk osk pulpit, cheire, =nd commmnion isble give
&n imprecssive eppesrence. A megnificent brese cross centred
on the communion teble &dds to the bezuty of the scnciusry.
in oek cebinet, dediczted in 1972, holds the communion set
ee well g5 the originel chelice. The lztest renovetions to
the senctuery were completed in 1973 end included the instsl-
letion of & modern steined gless window in the front well of
the church £s well s the gddition of ¢ lectern =nd & new
hymn boerd. The Presbyterien Women provided £ public address
system in 1973 slso. :

St. John'es hes hed elmost & century of giving to Rodney
end surrounding £ree sound Christizn docirine =nd contri-
buting to the good of the compunity. £1though St. Johm's
lost meny of its membere £t the time of church union in 1925,
it h=s never feltered, pressing onwerd. -

Throughout the yeesrs it hes given Christien fellowship
£end ipstruction to meny who hetve mede worthy contributions
to their couniry e£nd fellow men. Keny of its boys merved in
World Wers 1 £nd IT.

St. John's is especielly proud of the five men who begen
their Christiern educétion in its Sundsy School =nd beceme
ordeined ministers, snd encther who beceme & medicel doctor
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end spent some time g = redicel miseiomery in Formosa.
They zre: Rev. Ir. Herold Lowry
Rev. D. 5t. Cleir Cempbell

Rev. Dr. Dillwyn Evens, pest moderstor of
the Presbyterisn Church in Censds

Rev. Dr. D. Glenn Cemplbell

Rev. Den D. Geynor, retired United Church
minister

¥. G+« Grehem K.D.

tnnivereery services &re held esch yesr on the lasi
Sundey of October. Keny former members return to renew
old ecqueintences end to reseffirm their feith. The ser-
vice in 1958 wes €& very speciel one ss our four Precsby-
terien ministers originelly from St. John's were in charge.

1975 wee Centenniel Yesr of The Presbyterien Church in
Cenede, St. John's celebreted this event the first Sundey
in Jenuery. Worshipping with 5i. John's wes the congregs-
tion of Celvery United Church. Rev. G. W. Lewis, & former
minister of St. John's =nd Rev. Jemes Ven Slyke of the Uni-
ted Church conducted the service. Every seet in the =udi-
torium wes teken with meny sested in the Sundey School room
where loudspeskers broedeceet the service. On the first Sun-
dey of fugust, 1975, the mortigege on the mense wes burned,
leeving St. John's free from debt.

We look beckwerd with gretitude to those who through
the yeers worked so fsithfully end contributed so much.
We look forwerd with hope thet in the coming yetrs, the mem—
ters of thie church rey emulete the fine Christien exemple
of those who heve gone before.

¥inieters of St. John's Church, Rodney

¥r. ¥unroe 15377=1878 J. P, Felconer 1908-1922
Devid ¥enn 1881-1384 ¥. d. Wollznd 1972-1925
G, £. Frences 1586-1889 G. L. Evens 1925-1928

d. F. Scott 1893-1508 G. W. Connors 1929-1231



History of St. John'e Fresbyterien
' Church Rodney 1877-1975

£.S. Olive?
Ches Cernegy
Keil Smith
£.D. KeclLellen
T.E. Fennedy
H.-Pritchsrd

1932-1936
1937-1941
1S£2-1944
1945-1947
1947-1953
1953=-1955

£.d. Cook
Walter Eutcher
D.R.NcDoneld
G.¥. Lewis
Williem Scotd

4

- 71957=1958
1959-1963
1963-1568
1969-19T74
1975=-



ALBOROUGH EVANGELICAL CHURCH

The Alborough Evangelical Church had its beginning as early
as 1860. When the German Settlers of the district felt keenly the
need of a church in which their mother tongue was spoken. Henry
Sauer, who was grandfather of Mr, Arlie Plyley and Uncle of Michael
and Adam Baker, traveled from Willowby Township on Horseback and
on foot to speak and teach in the homes where these sincere peorle
gathered to hear the word of God taught.

In 1861 a little church was constructed by Solomon McCall of
Brock's Creek with Adam Baker as Mason. The interior appointments
included Altar, Fulpit and seats all made by hand.

The land consisting of 10 Acres of Woods and thicket, was
donated by The Canada Land Co., and was located at the cross roads
of Middle St. and Kerr Road, L4 miles from the village of Hodney
and 3 miles from No. 3 Highway. The land was cleared by the staunch
God fearing pioneers and a parsconage was built behind the church.
This house still stands and is owned by Mr. Willis a new Canadian.

At the time this church was built, forty members joined, and
Rev. Wildfang was the first Pastor. He also walked and rode horse-
back zgainst many difficulties to bring the Word of God to this
settlement.

In 1862 Rev, Holtzman followed and in 1863 Rev. S. Krup

served with a change in Hay of Huron Co. also. The following

Ministers served later:

1864 - 66 - Rev. T. Hauck

1866 - 67 - "™ M, Roderman

1868 =69 - "™ G. Barnhart

1870 - 72 - L G. Groff

1873 = 74 - n Sharfa

1875 - 77 - 9 Holtzman for a second term during

which a new church was built, with J. J. Mistele as contractor, and

the men of the church doing the hawling, at a cost of $1,690.00
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The old building was moved west on Silver Street and was occupied by
Mr. Watson, father of Mrs. Jennie Schliehauf.

Rev. Allis delivered the dedication service in this new church in
German (1876) while Rev. Lecter of West Lorne delivered a serman in

English. Later Pastors were:

1878 - 79 - Rev. Steinogel
1880 - 82 - " H. Werner
1883 - 85 - n Finkbeiner
1886 - 88 - " John Stabler
1886 - 91 - "™  Levi Witting
1892 - 03 - T E. H. Bean
189, - 96 - L J. K. Devitt
1897 - 99 - " G. H. Wagner
1900 - 02 - 7 E. D. Becker
1903 - 06 - "  Fred Meyer
1607 - 10 - n W. M. Sippel

On June 26, 1910 during the leadership of Rev. Sippel the Alborough
Evangelical Church celebrated its fiftieth Anniversary. Rev. Wildfang,
organizer and Pastor of 60 years back and now a man of 84 years of age,
was the special speaker on this occasion. Also Rev. Bucks, Editor of
the Evangelical Messenger, Cleveland, Ohio. The Choir excelled them-
selves under the leadership of Rev. Sippel and Emma Zoller as organist.

Rev. A. W. Sauer, nephew of the afore mentioned Henry Sauer, was

Pastor from 1911 - 15

1916 - 21 - Rev. J. C. Morlock
1922 - 23 - " A. Clemens
1924, - 28 - " J. G, Burns
1929 - 30 - " N. Reibling
1931 - " F. B, Meyer

w32
1935 - 38

In September of 1935 the beautiful large church which had been

n W. 0. Hayne

improved on down through the years celebrated its 75th Anniversary.

Rev. J. P. Hauch of Stratford was Guest Speaker and delivered three
sermans (morning, afternoon and evening). The church (the largest in
the District) was filled to capacity. The Choir and Octette with Mr.
Arlie Plyley as leader and Marjorie Plyley as pianist, sang at all three

services.
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At the morning service Kev. Hauch spoke on Col. 3-11 and 1 Tim.

1-1., CPrrist our Supreme and Unfailing Hope. A Communion Service
followed. The Young people had charge of the afternoon service, when

Mr. Fred Schmeltz, Supt. of the Sunday Schcol and keeve of Alborough
Township, welcomed the audience. Rev. Donald Stewart of the Rodney United
Church gave an address on the theme "Christian Helpfulness" and Hev. Hauch
spoke on "Josiahs Early Piety™. At the evening service Hev. Hauch took
his text from Psalm 104-24, "The Earth is full of Thy Riches"™. The

Pastcr Rev. Hayne gave a sketch on the founding of the werk, and two
Veteran members Mr. J. J. Mistele and Mr. J. Zoller also gave short talks,
and were later presented withk flowers.

In the old records are found such names as Baker, Braun, Hessenauer,
Hux, Hauser, Kriter, Mistele, Miller, Flyley, Schmelz, Schell, Streib,
Strom and Zoller. This church has made a worthy contribution to the
Christian Ministry, also, and the following have been active men in the
ranks. Edwin Baker, Jacob Brawn, C. R. Kauth, Albert Plyley, Elliot
Zoller and Dr. John Zoller of Radio fame was carried to this church in his
mothers arms.

In 1938-45 Rev. Chas. Kauth (a native son) was stationed here and
served very favourably always willing to help in any way. It was seven
years of mutual service and the people were gladdened to have Chas. and
ris wife (Edith Mistele) whc was also born and reared in our midst.

Rev. W, T. Brown was sent here in 1945. Although not an ordained
minister, he studied and passed all tests and exams, and at Calvary
Evangelical Church at Kitchener, at the 1946 Conference Session he was
ordained by Bishop George Epp, who was Bishop cver our Canada Conference.
It was under Rev. Browns vouthful and untiring efforts that the church
made socme extensive improvements. The basement was deepened and a new
0il furnace installed, slso a lovely kitchen with cost of over $4,000,

which was raised and paid off by members of thre congregation and by
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the manual labor of the men of the Church. Special mention should be
made of Martin and Miltcn Miller and Keuben Kriter. These men led the
others in bees, and spent many hours in labor in the church with the
Pastor by their side, doing all.he could to help, and when finished,

we were humbly proud of our lovely large church with its towerines steeple
pointing Heavenward. And for the many Souls down through the years that
had found Christ as their Savior at its Altar. Rev. Brown served three
years with us. Then the Conference saw fit to riove him to a Hamilton
charge.

Rev. F. Paul Erb also a young and very talented man took EKev., Brown's
place here in 1948, He came in Fay and we enjoyed hes ministry but a
short time in this lovely white Church by the side of the Road. On
Saturday evening, September 19, 1948 during a severe electrical storm our
church was struck by lightening and in a few hours was in ashes.,

| After serving a community for 88 years. It is needless to say, that
it was a very saddened congregation that gathered beside the ashes and
held their morning worship, led by their Pastor Rev. Erb. Though they
were overshadowed by a sreat cloud, yet the Voice of Him who doeth all
things well was heard "Lo I am with you always".

At the kind invitation of the sister Church in kodney we all went
to hold our regular service at 10 a.m. the next Sunday. But is was not
until April 1949 that a new conecregation was organized and called Calvary
Memorial with Harvey Miller, Martin Miller and Miltcn Baker as trustess,
Harvey Miller serving as orgsnist and Arlie Plyley as Choir leader.

A fine Junior Sunday School was held after the morning service with
Harold Bsker as President and Mrs. Chas. Ludy as pianist. In 1950 e
Mission Band was organized with Mrs, Walter Miller as leader. This is a
spledid group, and the children all have prayer partners, and have brought

home the Efficiency Shield for three years.
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In the fall of 1949 renovation was made in the church and decorating
dene. In February 1950, a Wurlitzer Church Organ was placed 1in the
church as a permanent Memorial of the former Alborough Ccngregation.

Rev. Erb served for five years until 1953, when an older man was
gsent to us. Rev. J. N. Wettlaufer has proven himself to be a faithful
and earnest Pastor, willing to serve in any capacity of the church. Eoth
he and his family are very talented in music, and are always ready to
oblirse. There are between 90 and 100 active members on our Church list
at the present time.

As I write this History of the Albtorough Emmanuel Evangelical Church,
I feel very unworthy to fulfil this task, because there were so many who
served before I was born. But today as I look back, I see a great mul-
titude who have washed their sins in the Blood of the Lamb. Some lived
loncer than others, tut all did their best and pares could be written of
their noble efforts. But we are not =woins to spend our time looking back,
but rather"looking up" and"looking forward".

At present all the crganizations of our Church are active. The
"Youth Fellowship" meets Sunday eveing in the homes. Arthur Hux is the
Presidert at this time and the Alborou~h Church was never withcut &
Young Peoples Society.

In May 1923‘in the home of Mrs. Rebecca Baker loceted on Highway #3,
a Womens Society of World Service and Ladies Aid was organized. Dlirs.
Rebecca Baker was first President and Mrs. Reuben Kriter first Secretary.
This has been an active group and is a strong organization of the church
today. Mrs. J. Hessenaur, Mrs., Margaret Miller, Mrs. Henry Miller and
Mrs. Barbara Hux are our oldest members, wrko are 80 years and over, but
who are active and our prayer warriors, and never miss a meeting, which
are held the first Wednesday of ezch month in the different homes. Our

books show excellant financial reports. During the year of April 1954-55



